


COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

1. This is an action under the Freedom of Information Act, 5 U.S.C. § 552, to obtain
full release of the secret, two-page U.S. Department of Energy “Guidance on Release of
Information Relating to the Potential for an Israeli Nuclear Capability” (WNP-136) which
the Defendant Department of Energy (“DOE”) and U.S. Department of State (“DOS”)
have impropetly withheld from the Plaintiff.

2. This court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 5 U.S.C. § 552(a)(4)(B).

3. Venue is appropriate under 5 U.S.C. {§ 552(a)(4)(B), 703 and 28 U.S.C. § 1391.

4. Defendant U.S. Department of Energy (“DOE?”) is an agency within the meaning
of 5 U.S.C. § 552(¢) and is in possession and/or control of the records requested by Plaintiff
which are the subject of this action.

5. Defendant U.S. Department of State (“DOS”) is an agency within the meaning of
5U.S.C. § 552(¢), consulted by DOE in the FOIA administrative phase, and the originator
of the now unclassified classification Guide 05-1, D, dated January 2005 (available online at

https://fas.org/sgp/othergov/dos-class.pdf) from which Defendants claim the still-secret

WNDP-136 is detivative.
0. The Plaintiff has a legal right under FOIA to obtain the information he seeks, and

there is no legal basis for the denial by Defendants of said right.


https://fas.org/sgp/othergov/dos-class.pdf

7. Plaintiff, Grant F. Smith, is an author and public interest researcher and founder of
the Institute for Research: Middle Eastern Policy, Inc. IRmep) and is the requester of the
records which Defendant(s) are now withholding.

8. On February 18, 2015 the Plaintiff filed a FOIA describing records sought as
“DOE Classification Bulletin WPN-136 on Foreign Nuclear Capabilities.”

9. On February 23, 2015 Defendant DOE acknowledged the request and assigned it
number HQ-2015-00699-F. (Exhibit A)

10. On August 20, 2015 Defendant DOE released an almost completely redacted
copy of “Guidance on Release of Information Relating to the Potential for an Israeli Nuclear
Capability” (WPN-136) (Exhibit B)

11. On August 25, 2015 the Plaintiff filed an administrative appeal demanding a
complete and unredacted release of WPN-136.

12. On February 12, 2016 the Defendants denied Plaintiff’s administrative appeal.
(Exhibit C) citing FOIA Exemptions 1 and 7(E).

13. The Defendant DOE claims that WPN-1306 is “properly classified under
Executive Order 13526” because an Associate Under-Secretary who reviewed the document
claims it “contains information pertaining to the Israeli government that the Department of
State has determined to be NSI [national security information].”

14. Defendant DOE claims it coordinated this review with the Department of State
and could “find no change in policy in the interim, he determined DOE must continue to
respect its sister agency’s determination that the portion of the Guidance deleted and marked

‘DOS (b)(1) is still propetly classified by the Department of State as NSI pursuant to
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Executive Order 13526. As stated above, when NSI is propetly classified under that
Executive Order, it is exempt from mandatory disclosure under Exemption 1.”

15. Plaintiff alleges that the function of WPN-136 is not protecting NSI, but rather to
conceal violations of law, which is expressly forbidden under EO 13526.

16. The White House issued Executive Order 13526 Classified National Security
Information on December 29, 2009. It specifically prohibits the use of classification to
cover-up wrongdoing stating, “(a) In no case shall information be classified, continue to be
maintained as classified, or fail to be declassified in order to: (1) conceal violations of law,
inefficiency, or administrative error.”

17. WPN-136 unlawfully restricts the release of U.S. government information about
Israel’s nuclear weapons program, and gags knowledgeable government employees and
contractors from engaging in public policy discussions about Israel’s nuclear weapons
program. This in turn enables other unlawful activities.

18. Whenever U.S. government information about Israel’s clandestine nuclear
weapons program is publicly released, it raises public concerns about U.S. compliance with
Arms Export Control Act sections restricting and conditioning U.S. foreign aid to foreign
countries that have not signed the Nuclear Non-Proliferation Treaty, yet are known to have
nuclear weapons programs, specifically 22 USC (2799aa-1: Nuclear reprocessing transfers, illegal
exports for nuclear explosive devices, transfers of nuclear explosive devices, and nuclear detonations.

19. Israel is the largest cumulative recipient of U.S. foreign aid, having received over
$250 billion in inflation-adjusted aid since 1948. This is more aid than was used to rebuild

postwar Europe under the Marshall Plan. This aid is opposed by the majority of Americans,
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possibly due to Israel’s poor human rights record. (See “81 of Americans Oppose $38 Billion

Pledge to Israel” Antiwar.com, September 20, 2016 https://original.antiwar.com/smith-

grant/2016/09/19/81-americans-oppose-38-billion-pledge-israel /)

20. The Arms Export Control Act is very clear about what measures must apply to
any non-NNPT U.S. foreign aid recipient found to have a nuclear weapons program. Under
22 USC §2799aa-1 1f a president nevertheless wishes to provide U.S.-taxpayer-funded
foreign aid, he must, a bare minimum, “determine and certify in writing to the Committee on
Foreign Affairs of the House of Representatives that the application of such sanctions
against such country would have a serious adverse effect on vital United States interests. The
President shall transmit with such certification a statement setting forth the specific reasons
therefor.”

21. U.S. presidents have issued such notifications and waivers to allow U.S. foreign
aid to Pakistan and India. Subsequent legislation specifically exempted these countries from
22 USC §2799aa-1 provisions.

22. According to the office of Congresswoman Eleanor Holmes Norton on March
27,2018, “No president has exercised his authority to waive the nuclear enrichment transfer
prohibition for Israel” under 22 USC §2799aa-1. (Exhibit D).

23. Instead, U.S. presidents and officials of executive agencies, such as DOS, have
engaged in elaborate evasions and circumlocutions to avoid answering direct public-policy
related questions about U.S. law and Israel’s nuclear weapons program.

24. George W. Bush administration officials dodged questions about Israel's nuclear

program put to them by the Communications Director of the Institute for Public Accuracy,
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Sam Husseini. As the founder of the website WashingtonStakeout.com, Husseini repeatedly
asked executive branch officials during media opportunities, as they left Sunday morning talk
shows and other venues, to confirm or deny the existence of an Israeli nuclear weapons
program. The following transcripts were derived from a video documentary of his efforts.
See Sam Husseini and Chris Belcher, Stakeout: Israel Nuclear. Sam Husseini asks U.S.

government officials why they won't acknowledge the existence of Israel's nuclear arsenal at

https://voutu.be/vmw0rHZIQKg

25. September 10, 2006 Vice President Dick Cheney

Sam Husseini "Welcome!
Vice President Dick Cheney "Good morning."

Sam Husseini "Do you know that Israel has nuclear weapons, Mr. Vice

President?"
Cheney enters vehicle but does not respond.

Sam Husseini "Does Israel have nuclear weapons?"

26. December 20, 2006, John Negroponte, Director of National Intelligence

Sam Husseini "Do you know that Israel has nuclear weapons?"

John Negroponte, Director of National Intelligence: "I'm. I don't (shaking

head) want to get into a discussion about, uh..."

Sam Husseini "You can't comment on whether or not Israel has nuclear

weapons?"


https://youtu.be/vmw0rHZlQKg

John Negroponte "...about Israel's nuclear powers, thank you very

much."

Sam Husseini "How can you expect to have any credibility on the Middle

East if you can't say whether Israel has nuclear weapons?"
John Negroponte walks away.

Sam Husseini "Mr. Ambassador, you're head of National Intelligence.

You can't say whether Israel has nuclear weapons?"
Security detail [unintelligible]

Sam Husseini "No, he didn't answer the question. If he answered the

question I'd go away."

27. February 25, 2007 Secretary of State Condoleezza Rice

Sam Husseini "Secretary Rice, please, it's an important question. 1 don't think_you've
been asked this question. How do you reconcile. Madam Secretary, does Israel have

nuclear weapons? Can you answer that? It’s a very simple question.
Secretary of State Condoleezza Rice does not respond.

Sam Husseini: "Secretary [of Defense Robert] Gates said that they did, implied it in

his confirmation hearings. Please? Please? They're two very simple questions."

28. Veteran White House reporter Helen Thomas asked President Barack Obama
about Israel's status as a nuclear weapons state on February 9, 2009: See CNN Transcript,
"Obama takes questions on the economy," February 9, 2009.

http://www.cnn.com/2009/POLITICS/02/09/obama.conference.transcript/
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Helen Thomas: Mr. President, do you think that Pakistan and -- are
maintaining the safe havens in Afghanistan for these so-called terrorists?
And, also, do you know of any country in the Middle East that has

nuclear weapons?

29. President Obama chose to answer the first question, but offered no specifics on

the second, as revealed in CNN’s official transcript:

Obama: Well, I think that Pakistan -- there is no doubt that, in the FATA
region of Pakistan, in the mountainous regions along the border of

Afghanistan, that there are safe havens where terrorists are operating.

And one of the goals of Ambassador Holbrooke, as he is traveling

throughout the region, is to deliver a message to Pakistan that they are
endangered as much as we are by the continuation of those operations
and that we've got to work in a regional fashion to root out those safe

havens.

It's not acceptable for Pakistan or for us to have folks who, with
impunity, will kill innocent men, women and children. And, you know, I -
- I believe that the new government of Pakistan and -- and Mr. [President
Asif Ali] Zardari cares deeply about getting control of the situation. We

want to be effective partners with them on that issue.

Question: (off mic)



Obama: Well, Mr. Holbrooke is there, and that's exactly why he's being
sent there, because I think that we have to make sure that Pakistan is a

stalwart ally with us in battling this terrorist threat.

With respect to nuclear weapons, you know, I don't want to speculate.
What I know is this: that if we see a nuclear arms race in a region as

volatile as the Middle East, everybody will be in danger.

And one of my goals is to prevent nuclear proliferation generally. I think
that it's important for the United States, in concert with Russia, to lead the

way on this.

And, you know, I've mentioned this in conversations with the Russian

president, Mr. [Dmitry] Medvedev, to let him know that it is important

for us to restart the -- the conversations about how we can start reducin
g

our nuclear arsenals in an effective way so that...
(CROSSTALK)

Obama: ... so that we then have the standing to go to other countries and
start stitching back together the nonproliferation treaties that, frankly,

have been weakened over the last several years. OK.
Question: Why do you have to speculate on who has...
(CROSSTALK)

Obama: All right. Sam Stein, Huffington Post. Where's Sam? Here. Go
ahead.

30. One member of Congtess in a position to know, who is not bound by WPN-136,
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was recently been pressed to respond truthfully when publicly asked about Israel’s nuclear
weapons program. The following exchange took place at the National Press Club on
February 27, 2017: See Truthdig “Sen. Schumer: It’s a well-known fact that Israel has nuclear

weapons” Match 2, 2018 https://www.truthdig.com/videos/sen-schumer-its-a-well-known-

fact-that-israel-has-nuclear-weapons-video / and “Sen. Check Schumer admits Israel has

nuclear weapons at the National Press Club.” YouTube video,

https://voutu.be/RSIpAPWEJFI

Sam Husseini: You voted for the 2002 Iraq War Resolution, claiming Iraq
was vigorously pursuing nuclear weapons. Do you acknowledge that Israel

has nuclear weapons? [another question directed at Nancy Pelosi] ....
SH: Senator Schumer -- on Israel's nukes -- do you acknowledge --
Chuck Schumer: I didn't get your question.

SH: Do you acknowledge that Israel has nuclear weapons, sir?

CS: I'm not -- you can -- go read the newspapers about that. [walks away

from podium]|
SH: You can't acknowledge that Israel has nuclear weapons, sir?

Chuck Schumer: It is a well-known fact that Israel has nuclear weapons,
but the Israeli government doesn't officially talk about what kinds of

weapons and where, etc.
SH: Should the U.S. government be forthright?

Chuck Schumer: Ok, that's it.


https://www.truthdig.com/videos/sen-schumer-its-a-well-known-fact-that-israel-has-nuclear-weapons-video/
https://www.truthdig.com/videos/sen-schumer-its-a-well-known-fact-that-israel-has-nuclear-weapons-video/
https://youtu.be/RSIpAPWEJFI
http://www.accuracy.org/release/schumers-record-pro-war-backed-by-wall-street/
http://husseini.posthaven.com/video-pelosi-ducks-question-on-impeachment

Jetf Ballou (National Press Club President, news editor at Al Jazeera): OKk,

we'll move on.

31. Defendants further claim WPN-136 is exempt from release as “compiled for law
enforcement purposes” under Exemption 7(E). Defendants cite that the Supreme Court
holds that such coverage includes “proactive steps designed to prevent criminal activity and
to maintain security.” The DOE’s Associate Under-Secretary claimed that WPN-136
“contains DOE sensitive unclassified information related to guidance on the handling of
certain information pertaining to the Israeli government that the Department of State has
determined to be NSI. According to the Associate Under Secretary, this information, which
was withheld pursuant to Exemption 7(E), constitutes information that would provide
insight into the types of documents the government considers to be classified. If this
information were released, it would materially assist efforts to discern classified or sensitive
information through comparison with de-classified information. Its release would reduce,
and possibly nullity, the effectiveness of the classification procedure described in the
Guidance, which is still in effect, and which would impair the DOE’s ability to enforce laws
related to protecting classified information from public release.” (Exhibit C)

32. WPN-130, at its core, is a legislative rule in the form of a classification guide
advanced by the Defendants to violate U.S. law, specifically 22 USC (2799aa-1, rather than
enforce the law. The record is clear that Defendant DOE has fired, penalized and
discredited agency officials who, while in office, publicly and unequivocally stated that Israel

has a nuclear weapons program. However, they do so not in the name of preserving
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“techniques and procedures used in civil as well as criminal law enforcement investigations,”
but as a means to violate 22 USC §2799aa-1 in order to deliver U.S. foreign aid to Israel.

33. Core provisions of 22 USC §2799aa-1 have been the law since 1976. Until 2012,
there was no single formal mechanism for punishment of those who forthrightly discussed
Israel’s nuclear weapons program. Since enactment (which Plaintiff has argued in the past,
was an unlawful legislative rule, not a true “classification guidance”) WPN-136 has been used
to harshly punish (and therefore deter) any covered party (federal government employees
and contractors) who dares to officially confirm that Israel is a nuclear weapons state,
whether that covered party’s sources are public domain or government sources. Punishment
under WPN-136 is swift and harsh. Los Alamos National Laboratory nuclear analyst James
Doyle wrote candidly about Israel’s nuclear weapons for a scholarly magazine in 2013. After
a congressional staffer read the article, which had passed a classification review, it was
referred to classification officials for a second review. Doyle’s pay was then cut, his home
computer searched, and he was fired. See “Nuclear weapons lab employee fired after
publishing scathing critique of the arms race. Los Alamos lets a 17-year employee go after

retroactively classifying his published article,” Douglas Birch, The Center for Public

Integrity, July 31, 2014 https://www.publicintegrity.org/2014/07/31/15161/nucleat-

weapons-lab-employee-fired-after-publishing-scathing-critique-arms-race.
34. Even the title of WPN-136 “Guidance on Release of Information Relating to the

Potential for an Israeli Nuclear Capability” belies Defendant assertions it is a classification

guidance. Israel’s “nuclear capability” has long been fully realized. But the Orwellian title
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suggests that despite decades of official and unofficial confirmation of that fact, the nuclear
program is merely “potential.”

35. That WPN-1306 is therefore not really a classification guidance, but itself a
“technique and procedure” to violate law is also revealed in the DOS source from which it is
derived, Guide 05-1, D, dated January 2005 which recommends that, “Reporting on and
analysis of the internal affairs or foreign relations of a country is a central function of U.S.
foreign service posts and is vital to the formulation and execution of U.S. foreign policy.
This reporting should be unclassified when the subject matter is routine, already in the
public domain, or otherwise not sensitive.”

36. There are many public policy questions about Israel’s nuclear weapons program
of growing concern to Americans. Should Israel’s nuclear weapons facilities be inspected by
the International Atomic Energy Agency? Where does Israel dispose of the toxic waste its
program generates? Is the U.S. still vigorously investigating (though not prosecuting)
diversions of materials and technologies to Israel, as it did in the past over nuclear triggers
(The Milchan-Netanyahu krytron smuggling ring), weapons grade uranium (NUMEC),
oscilloscopes and other weapons development technology diversions (Telogy LLC)? Can
Israeli ballistic nuclear missiles now reach the U.S.? Are Israel’s nuclear weapons used to
coerce the U.S. into making adverse policy decisions? Besides apartheid South Africa, has
Israel offered any of its nuclear weapons for sale to other foreign countries? Does the U.S.
fear “suitcase” or other types of Israeli nuclear weapons might be used in “false flag” attacks
designed to be crisis initiators to provoke U.S. actions against Israel’s enemies? Has Israel

mounted nuclear weapons onto its German-supplied Dolphin-class submarines?
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37. Israel’s nuclear weapons program is a fact with important public policy
implications, but Defendant Department of State in particular acts in bad faith to pretend
otherwise.

38. On September 16, 2016 State Department Spokesperson John Kirby responded
to a reporter’s persistent questions about the legality of aid to Israel. The reporter inquired
about leaked emails written by former Secretary of State Colin Powell confirming that Israel
had over 200 nuclear weapons pointed at Tehran. Asked whether, under U.S. law, U.S.
foreign aid to Israel should be cut off since it is not a signatory to the Nuclear Non-
proliferation Treaty, Kirby dodged and weaved, claiming facts already in the public domain

were an “intelligence matter.” See John Kirby, Spokesperson, “Daily Press Briefing” U.S.

DOS, September 16, 2016 http://www.state.gov/r/pa/prs/dpb/2016/09/262000.htm

QUESTION: Okay. So an email has recently come to light, an exchange
between Jeffrey Leeds and former Secretary of State Colin Powell, in
which he [Powell] acknowledges that Israel has, quote — has — he says 200
nuclear weapons. And the Nuclear Nonproliferation Treaty has not been
signed by Israel. Under U.S. law, the United States should cut off support
to Israel because it’s a nuclear power that has not signed the Nuclear

Nonproliferation Treaty according to Colin Powell. Correct?

MR KIRBY: Shouldn’t you ask Colin Powell that? I’'m not going to speak

to this particular traffic and I'm certainly not going to discuss --
QUESTION: So you’re saying Israel doesn’t have nuclear weapons?

MR KIRBY: I'm certainly not going to discuss matters of intelligence

from the podium and I’'m not — I have no comment on that.
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QUESTION: Okay. Well, the email says, “The boys in Tehran know
Israel has 200, all targeted on Tehran, and we have thousands.” I mean,
that seems to indicate that there’s a knowledge of an Israeli nuclear

program, which would make U.S. aid to Israel illegal.
MR KIRBY: I think I’ve answered your question.

QUESTION: Okay. Well, let me ask: Is that — am I — do I have the
correct understanding of U.S. law, that we are not allowed to support a

nuclear power that has not signed the Nuclear Nonproliferation Treaty?

MR KIRBY: Look, we obviously support the Nuclear Nonproliferation
Treaty. I'm not a legal expert on all the tenets of it and I am certainly not
going to speak about the details that you’ve revealed here in this email
traffic. That would be inappropriate for me to discuss one way or the

other. I’'m not going to do it.

QUESTION: Follow-up on North Korea? So there are sanctions
imposed on North Korea in response to their nuclear proliferation. There
were sanctions put on Iran in response to allegations of nuclear
proliferation. And now we have this email from Colin Powell saying that

Israel has 200 nuclear weapons. Why is Israel not facing any consequence

for this?

MR KIRBY: That’s a very colorful way of getting back to the same
question you just asked me, but I’'m going to refer you back to the
transcript when you see it this afternoon to what I said before to your

question.

QUESTION: Can I just ask: You are familiar with this email, right?
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MR KIRBY: 'm not.
QUESTION: Okh.

MR KIRBY: I have not seen it. I'm not — I can’t speak to it, the email, and
trankly, even if I had seen it, sir, I wouldn’t engage in that kind of a

discussion from the podium.

39. A FOIA complaint in this court in 2015 compelled release of the Department of
Defense report “Critical Technology Assessment in Israel and NATO Nations.” The report
detailed Israel’s nuclear weapons production infrastructure and work on hydrogen bombs.
(See “U.S. Confirmed Existence of Israeli H-Bomb Program in 1987, Report Raises
Questions over U.S. Refusal to Enforce Own Foreign Aid Laws,” Antiwar.com February 14,
2015)

40. The Central Intelligence Agency, responding administratively to a Plaintiff FOIA
request on December 7, 2017 released its Special National Intelligence Estimate, "Prospects
for Further Proliferation of Nuclear Weapons" otherwise known as the 1974 SNIE. The
report detailed the range of Israel’s Jericho nuclear missiles, accurately predicted Israel’s
attempted sale of nuclear weapons to apartheid South Africa and provided new insights into
Israel’s theft of U.S. government owned weapons-grade uranium from a Pennsylvania
facility, the Nuclear Materials and Equipment Corporation. (See “In 1974 CIA Claimed
Israeli Nuclear Missiles Could Hit Neighbors, Newly released details link Israel’s highly
enriched uranium to Pennsylvania plant,” Antiwar.com, March 19, 2018.)

41. This court in particular holds in high esteem the Freedom of Information Act as
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the sole means of challenging the grave misapplication of EO 13526 and as an avenue for

government accountability. This court ruled in a related case (Smith v USA, 16-cv-1610) on

February 2, 2017) that “Plaintiff’s claims regarding Executive Order 13526 appear to bear

slightly more of a relationship to his ‘financial injuries,” because he intends to challenge
information classification that could impact his success in seeking government records. But
the availability of an adequate remedy under FOIA itself precludes any relief under the APA.
See, e.g., Feinman v. FBI, 713 F. Supp. 2d 70, 76 (D.D.C. 2010). Plaintiff may seek
compensation for his FOIA fees in the lawsuits he brought pursuant to FOIA. To the extent
that Plaintiff alleges informational injury— harm resulting from his inability to access the
information he seeks—based on Executive Order 13526, he must seek redress under FOIA
and not the APA. Citizens for Responsibility & Ethics in Washington v. United States Dep’t of Justice,
No. 16-5110, 2017 WL 412626 at *7-8 (D.C. Cir. Jan. 31, 2017) (explaining that ‘APA
section 704 limits review under that statute to agency actions ‘for which there is no other
adequate remedy in a court’ and finding no APA review of FOIA reading room’ violations).”

42. The Plaintiff therefore submits this much narrower FOIA request for judicial
review of two-pages of information.

43. It is timely under the judicial review provisions of the FOIA 5 U.S.C. §
552()(4)(B).

44. Plaintiff suggests that since Defendants have already submitted their affidavit,
which though entirely conclusory, presents their best legal argument for secrecy in their
Decision and Order (Exhibit C) that immediate 77 camera review would be the most

expedient means for this court to make its own independent determination whether FOIA
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Exemptions 1 and 2 were applied in good faith, or whether WPN-136 should be released in
tull to the plaintiff, and thereby to the American public. Defendant DOE considers their
response final enough to have published it on the DOE website in January of 2017 as “The
Matter of Grant F. Smith.” See

https://www.energy.gov/sites/prod/files /2017 /01 /£34/FIC-15-0003.pdf

45. There are many other strong indications of Defendant bad faith in classifying and
withholding WPN-1306, beyond the established fact that Israel has a nuclear weapons
program. Conditions applying to U.S. foreign aid disbursement to non-Nuclear Non-
Proliferation Treaty signatories with nuclear weapons programs are very clear under 22 USC
§2799aa-1: Nuclear reprocessing transfers, illegal exports for nuclear explosive devices, transfers of nuclear
explosive devices, and nuclear detonations. Rather than comply with this law, Defendants seek to
misuse their classification authority to restrict release of such official information and sever
public access to expertise encased within U.S. government agencies. “Where the record
contains a showing of bad faith, the district court would likely require In camera inspection.”
Ray v Turner, 587 F.2d 1187, 1195 (D.C. Cir 1978); see also Allen v CIA, 636 F.2d 1287, 1298
(D.C. Cir. 1980).

46. However, “[in] camera inspection does not depend on a finding or even tentative
finding of bad faith. A judge has discretion to order “/i/n camera inspection on the basis of an
uneasiness, on a doubt he wants satisfied before he takes responsibility for a de novo
determination. Government officials who would not stoop to misrepresentation may reflect

an inherent tendency to resist disclosure, and judges may take this natural indication into

account” Ray, 587 F.2d at 1195.
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47. There is a strong current public interest in 7z camera inspection of WPN-136. On
March 23 the President signed a $1.3 trillion spending bill into law, after Congress passed the
Consolidated Appropriations Act, 2018 mandating that $3.1 billion in foreign aid be given to

Israel. (See Page 1259, http://docs.house.gov/billsthisweek/20180319/BIILS-

115SAHR1625-RCP115-66.pdf) The authority cited for this $3.1 transfer (out of a total of

$5.7 billion) in taxpayer funds is section 23 of the Arms Export Control Act.

48. The American public in general, especially taxpayers, therefore have an immediate
and overriding interest in knowing whether 54% of funds enabled under one section of the
Arms Export Control Act (section 23) are being spent only because Defendants are
proactively undermining enforcement of another section of the very same act (section 22)
via the secret WPN-136. Iz camera review under such circumstances is proper. “In cases that

involve a strong public interest in disclosure there is...a greater call for in camera

inspection.” Allen v CLA, 636 F.2d 1287, 1294 (DC. Cir 1980).
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WHEREFORE, Plaintiff requests this Court:

(1) Declare the Defendants failure to comply with FOIA to be unlawful;
(2) Disclose the compete, unredacted copy of WPN-136 to him;
(3) Grant such other and further relief as may deem just and proper.

Respectfully submitted,

Grant F. Smith

IRmep

P.O. Box 32041
Washington, D.C. 20007
202-342-7325

info@IRmep.org
For process service:

Grant F. Smith ¢/o IRmep
1100 H St. NW Suite 840
Washington, D.C. 20005

Dated: April 5,2018
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Exhibit A Department of Energy, FOIA interim response, HQ-2015-00699-F,
February 23, 2015
Exhibit B Department of Energy, FOIA final response, HQ-2015-00699-F, August
20, 2013
Exhibit C Department of Energy, FOIA appeal denial, HQ-2015-00699-F, FIC-15-
0003, February 12, 2016
Exhibit D Eleanor Holmes Norton, letter to Plaintiff about the Arms Export Control

Act and Israel, March 27, 2018




Exhibit A

Department of Energy, FOIA interim response, HQ-2015-00699-F, February 23, 2015









Exhibit B
Department of Energy, FOIA final response, HQ-2015-00699-F, August 20, 2015


















Exhibit C

Department of Energy, FOIA appeal denial, HQ-2015-00699-F, FIC-15-0003,
February 12, 2016





















Exhibit D

Eleanor Holmes Norton, letter to Plaintiff about the Arms Export Control Act and Israel,
March 27, 2018



Buranox Houwes Noron MAR 3 0 2018 . i CommtTeE ON OVERSIGHT AND
GovERNMENT REFORM
COMMITTEE ON S R 5
TRANSPORTAT!ON AND

INFRASTRUCTURE

Ranking Memeer

Congress of the United States
House of Representatines
Washington, TC 20313-1501

March 27, 2018

Mr. Grant F. Smith
Washington, DC 20007-1248
Dear Grant,

Thank you for contacting me regarding the Arms Export Control Act and Israel. I very
much appreciate hearing from you. No president has exercised his authority to waive the nuclear
enrichment transfer prohibition for Israel.

Please continue to keep me informed of your views on legislation and other congressional
issues. I also invite you to contact me whenever you have a personal federal issue or a problem
for which you think I can be helpful. 1 hope you visit my website at www.norton.house.gov and
sign up for my weekly newsletter, where I report the earliest information on what [ am doing in
Congress, and view my seasonal newsletter. I also invite you to follow me on Facebook, Twitter
and Instagram. Please note that our constituent services office has moved to the front entrance of
a new building at 90 K Street NE. Please visit or call us at (202) 408-9041 if you are in need of
constituent services.

Sincerely.

Eleanor Holmes Norton
Member of Congress

Initials/IB
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